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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directars present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2022,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities include the transportation and treatment of water, including the design,
manufacture, supply, rental and service of fluid handling, filtration and separation equipment and the supply and
installation of clean water treatments using UV, Ozone, filtration, separation and aeration products to the water
treatment industry and to the foad and beverage processing industry. In addition, the Group participates in the
design, development, manufacture and in-service support of opto-mechanical and digital Refractometers and
Polarimeters.

The Group distributes brands including Flygt waste-water pumps, Lowara clean water pumps, Jabsco products for
the feisure marine market including water system, engine cooling pumps, searchlights and marine waste systetns,
and Sanitaire aeration, Leopold filtration and Wedeco UV and Ozone treatment products.

The Group provides project management services to other Xylem companies based outside the UK under the Centre
of Excellence (COE} Model, providing a supporting rofe in the tendering and execution of projects involving Xylem
care products for which the Xylem companies do not have the core skill base. in addition, the Group provides
suppart services, including debt collection, credit control services, quality control and administrative services for all
Xylem UK operating companies.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS

Group turnover increased in the year by 4.3% from £230,662k to £240,556k. Group operating profit increased by
£3,797k to £6,282k compared to £2,985k in the prior year since the gootwill an cansofidation was fuily amortised
in the prior year. The prior year included amortisation of £4,826k in relation to this.

in 2022 we saw an increase in revenue over 2021 as Water Utilities continued to spend on capital projects as part of
the AMP cycle 5-year spending. The current AMP cycle started in 2020 with 2022 representing year 3 of the current
programme. Throughout 2022 we saw a significant uptick as customer site visits, to perform maintenance and
service, increased over 2020 and 2021 which were impacted by various lockdowns. Improvement in global supply
chains enabled us to better meet customer demand.

All manufacturing of filtration and separation equipment to the water treatment industry and to the food and
beverage processing industry ceased on 27 March 2022. This has been disclosed as discontinued operations (see
note 4).

Higher than expected commodity prices, freight, and general demand for components outstripping supply globally
continues to put pressure on our cost base. Despite a strong pipeline of orders and sales, ensuring strong
relationships across our supply chain, demonstrating agility to support our customers, and commanding price has
been key to maintaining profitability. As a result, a number of initiatives to manage risk, ensure adequate price
rezlization and improve customer service levels were implemented in the year including pricing actions to pass cost
increases through to customers and praductivity efforts, including product redesigns, alternate sourcing options,
and global procurement efforts, We have also Initiated and plan to continue to Initiate restructuring actions in 2023
to further optimize our cast structure.

The Xylem UK Pension Plan {XUPP) plan entered into a buy-in arrangement with an insurance company during 2020,
With effect from 27 January 2020, when the risk was formally transferred, the bulk of the Plan’s assets were used to
purchase annuities in the name of the Trustee to cover most of the Plan’s liabilities. The value of the final premium
paid to the insurer (prior to data true-up) was £256.1m.

On 30 September 2022 the Plan was fully bought out. Ali benefits were secured with Rothesay Life Plc and were
removed from the Group's balance sheet. At 30 September 2022 there was a residual amount of £282k in the Trustee
Bank Account, which was expected to be used to meet future expenses. This has been treated as a settlement loss
within the profit and loss account. During the year, the Group made grass contributions of £800k {2021: £6,886k)
to the scheme whilst receiving credits from another group company of £280k (2021: £2,410k). The scheme was fully
wound up on 14 November 2023.

The resulting profit for the year after interest and taxation amounted to £3,497k compared to a loss of £2,211k in
2021,



XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

REVIEW OF BUSINESS (CONTINLIED)

In the previous year, there were loans from Xylem Europe GmbH, a fellow group company, of £30m and £14m of
which interest was charged at a variable rate of 1% SONIA, with maturity scheduled for 31 March 2022, in addition,
there was a loan from Xylem Europe GmbH of £30m of which interest was charged at a variable rate of 0.6% SONIA
with maturity also scheduled for 31 March 2022. During 2022, the maturity date of all these loans was extended to
31 March 2027, therefore these loans are now reclassified within Creditors: amounts falling due after more than

ong year.

Defined benefit pension liabilities decreased from £7,050k ta £2,903k in the year, resulting in net lfabilities of
£7,051k compared to net liabilities of £13,699k in 2021.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Directors utilise various KPIs in order to measure the performance of the business against competitors and
previous periods:

2022 2021
EBITDA % of Turnover 3.5% 3.3%
EBITDA per employee {£'000) ® £10 £10
Turnover per employee {£000) £285 £286

@ EBITDA is earnings before defined benefit pension credits, Interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation
impairments.

Turnover Increased in the year by 4.3% from £230,662k to £240,556k, with an Increase in EBITDA of 9.2% from
£7,712k to £8,418k, resulting in an increase in the EBITDA % of turnover by 0,2%. Turnover per emplayee reduced
slightly from £286k to £285k per employee due to the increase in turnover in line with the increase In employees in
the year of 35. EBITDA per employee has remalned the same year on year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks of the Group are defined below. The directors of the Group have reviewed these risks and have
outlined below the actions taken to mitigate the potential impact.

Macro-economic

Risk

Macroeconomic impacts and dynamics, with respect to supply chain shortages, logistics challenges, tight labour
markets and inflation, have had, and continue to have, a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations. Future slowdowns, economic recession, or other prolonged downturns in the global economy or our
markets could have material adverse effects on our business, financial condition, cash flows, results of operations,
The main risks that we see relate to the operations of the UK business and the impact of reduction in the sales for
these businesses due to the level of ecanomic uncertainty for our customers within the industrial, building services
and beverage markets being most likely to be impacted.

Our operating costs are subject to fluctuations, particularly due to changes in prices for commodities, parts, raw
materials, energy and related utilities, freight and logistics, and cost of labour, which have been and may continue
to be driven by a variety of factors, including inflation, tight labour markets, prevailing price levels, exchange rates,
changes in trade agreements and trade protection measures including tariffs, and other economic factors.

In additien, we have significant manufacturing operations in Eurgpe, which could be adversely impacted by
increased costs for energy as a result of the Russia-Ukraine conflict and governments' efforts to decrease

dependence on Russia energy supplies.




XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
Macro-economic {continued)

Mitigation

The current macroeconomic environment has not caused a significant impact on the business ta date. This has
negatively impacted the short term outlook for growth and driven an increase in operational costs and Management
continue to take appropriate action where necessary, including working closely with suppliers to mitigate the
inflationary impact an pricing including energy costs. Management continue to monitor the situation and will
continue to consider any impact on the financial forecasts on an ongoing basis.

Competition risk

Risk

The majority of the Group's revenue is derived from its activities within three main end markets; municipal,
commercial building services and sub sectors of industry. These end markets are served through both direct and
indirect channels, the biggest activity being linked ta the municipal market which is driven by securing three to five
vear framework agreaments with the principal customers, which reduces short-term risk and potential loss of
revenue ta key competitors. The Group manages this risk by providing a full portfolio of products and a complete
solutions package to our target market, delivering customer value added services, being proactive to the demands
of and maintaining strong relationships with its customers.

The remainder of the Group operates in mature trading markets meaning that keeping in touch with customer
requirements is of the upmast importance. There are a number of other well-estabiished brands operating in a
number of sectors where the Group {via Xylem group arrangements) are present and the key drivers of
competitiveness vary significantly market to market based on customer expectations. The Group has a strong focus
on customer service and responsiveness and has established a strong internal network for sharing this data.

Mitigation

The Group’s strategy is to capitalise on the potential and strength of its leading brands and the trust in which they
are held, to build strong relationships with customers and suppliers, and to enhance its buying and promoticnal
activities.

Currency risk

Risk

Volatility in foreign currencies and other markets may also arise as the UX and EU work through the global inflation
situation and the recent war in Ukraine. As a resuit, we face continued uncertainty and risks of disruptions in our
supply chain and increased costs. In order to remain competitive, we may not be able to recover all or a portion of

these higher costs from our customers through product price increases, although several price increases have been
pushed out into the market.

Mitigation

The Group has rigorous policies and procedures in place to manage and report transactional exposures. Translation
exposures are partiay mitigated by ensuring that borrowings from Group Treasury are denominated in the major
currencies in which the Group operates.

Cash flow risk

Risk

The Group does not use foreign exchange forward contracts or interest rate swap contracts to hedge these
exposures as the amounts invalved are not material, but the risks are regularly reviewed to allow consideration of
the introduction of appropriate measures.

The Group is exposed to changes in variable interest rates attached to its formal loans from Xylem European
Treasury.

Mitigation
The Group does not manage its exposure to interest rate risk due to all loans being from Xylem Europe GmbH, a
fellow group company.



XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES {CONTINUED)
Credit risk

Risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank, trade and inter-company receivables. Policies and procedures exist
to ensure that the trade debtors have an appropriate credit history. The amounts in the balance sheet are net of
allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event,
which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows,

Mitigation
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of customers.

Technological risk

Risk

The products produced by the Group are the result of significant efforts in engineering and research and
development technology over a longer period of time. It is imperative that the Group’s products remain competitive
in terms of performance and cost (amongst other market drivers).

Mitigation
Supported hy another company within the Xylem Group, research and development activities are undertaken to
ensure that the products remain correctly positioned for the markets operated in,

Environmental/health & safety risk

Risk ;

The Group has a very strong culture of promoting the principals of having a safe warking environment for all
employees. This Is 2 constantly ongoing process and cavers all aspects of the business, When specific issues are
identified they are addressed without delay and the appropriate actions are taken to remove or mitigate future risk.
The Group has a praduct offering that is compliant with the environmental requirements of all major markets. During
2022 our focus was on ensuring our pumps were fully compliant with changing diesel emissions regulations.
investments were also made with continued improvements to the Research & Development facilities. We have
started to look at more sustainable and environmental alternatives to diesel engines.

Mitigation .

The Group applies standards throughout which are closely monitored and regularly audited. Health, safety and
environmental incidents are logged and analysed In order to learn the necessary lessons. Any major incident is
promptly reported to and investigated by management.

Climate change

Risk

Globally, the frequency and severity of weather events due to the effects of climate change is increasing. The
unpredictable nature of weather events and related conditions, including heavy flooding, water stress due to
prolonged droughts, and fluctuations in temperatures or weather patterns, including as a result of climate change,
can positively or negatively impact portions of our business. For example, heavy flooding and rain events attributable
to the effects of global climate change may increase customer demand for some of our solutions that help manage
water and stormwater averflows or remove and transfer excess or unwanted water. Prolonged drought conditions
may increase demand for our pumping technology used in agriculture and turf irrigation applications.

Demand for water reuse applications, including those provided by our treatment business, may aiso increase as
communities look to address water scarcity challenges due to the effects of climate change. In addition, fluctuations
in temperatures result in varying levels of demand for our products used in residential and commercial hydronic
applications, where homes and buildings use circulating water to heat and cool living spaces. Significant fluctuations
in these weather conditions and climate changes can therefore result in volatility in our financial results.

Mitigation

While we continue to assess these risks, implement mitigation plans and perform business continuity and disaster
recovery planning, we cannat be sure that disruptions with material adverse effects will not occur.



XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES {CONTINUED)
Legal and regulatory risk

Risk

Given our global operations, we are subject to regulation under a wide variety of laws, regulations and policies,
including laws and regulations related to GDPR, anti-corruption, trade including export and Import compliance, anti-
trust and money laundering. Our policies mandate compliance with these laws and regulations. The UK Bribery Act
of 2010 generally prohibit us from making improper payments to government officials or other persons for the
purpose of obtaining or retaining business. We operate in many parts of the world that are recognized as having
governmental and commercial corruption and in certain circumstances, strict compliance with anti-corruption laws
may conflict with local business customs and practices. We cannot guarantee that our internal contrals, policies and
procedures will always prevent and protect us from improper conduct of our employees or business partners,
Mitigation

it is not possible to predict with certainty the outcome of claims, investigations, regulatory proceedings and lawsuits,
and we could in the future incur judgments, fines or penalties or enter into settlements and claims. However, we
make assessments based on our knowledge and record any necessary estimates of loss contingencies where
necessary. The increase in regulation and enforcement means that legal and compliance risks will continue to exist
and additional legal and regulatory proceedings and other contingencies, the outcome of which cannot be predicted
with certainty, will arise from time to time.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

On 31 January 2023, Xylem announced its intention to move the production of Bellingham & Stanley Limited’s
laboratory refractometry and polarimetry products to its Weilheim, German facility. It is anticipated that order
entry and distribution for custamers outside the UK will transition to Weilheim, while UK customers will continue to
be served within the UK but under Xylem Water Solutions UK Limited. For all other business units it is not anticipated
that there will be any fundamental changes to the business in the foreseeable future.

SECTION 172(1) STATEMENT

The directars are bound by their duties under the Companies Act 2006 and the manner in which these have been
discharged, particularly their duty to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of its members as a whole,
forms the core theme of this statement.

The following sets out how the directors, in performing their duties over the course of the year, had regard to the
matters set out in Section 172(1) (a) to {f) of the Companies Act 2006.

Need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

The Group sells the majority of its products and services to third parties, with the manufacturing division in
Quenington {and formerly to 27 March 2022 in Hoddesdon} selling to another Xylem entity in Europe, services are
also provided to other Xylem entities in Europe and the rest of the world.

The Group purchases the majority of its products fraom other Xylem entities throughout Eurgope and the rest of the
world. The Directors recognise that the Graup’s own performance is very dependent on the performance of the
other Xylem entities. A priority for us is to contribute to society, the environment & the economy, being a socially
responsible business shaped by our decision making considering all stakeholders.

Desirabllity of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

Ensuring the customer is at the heart of decision making by the board is key to the success of the Group. Regular
meetings are held with all levels of our management teams and customers to ensure extensive customer
engagement shapes our business plan. Delivering to high standards for our customers is discussed at every Board
meeting to ensure we continue to successfully serve them with the provision of the highest quality of goods and
services.

Our fellow Xylem entities are our key suppliers who support us along with our employees in delivering for our
customers. Strong relationships with these suppliers ensure sustainable, high quality delivery for the benefit of all
stakeholders. Commercial performance is discussed at every Board meeting, including an update on performance
within these entities.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

SECTION 172(1) STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
Need to act fairly as between members of the company

The Group prepares manthly management accounts and rolling forecasts using prescribed financial and non-
financiat K®i’s under the direction of Xylem Inc. The management accounts are reviewed and compared to forecasts
and budgets. Directors and senior management meet on a quarterly basis to review group-wide activity and to
discuss significant issues in more detail as required to ensure results are in line with expectations and the strategic

plan of Xylem Inc.
interests of the company's employees

Our employees are central to the Group's overall success, properly incorporating their views into our decision-
making process is fundamental to what we do. Regular town hall meetings are held within the Group, in large
meeting rooms with ontine sign-in for those who are unable to attend or work at other sites, enabling formal
updates, with question and answer sessions, This allows us to provide an inciusive and diverse place to work;
amplifying the employee voice in many company decisions.

We are committed to a waorkplace that creates a sense of belonging for everyone: where all our colleagues feel
involved, respected, valued, heard, connected and able to bring their authentic selves to work. At Xylem, we
recognise the power of diversity, equity and inclusion to drive innovation, make us more competitive, positively
impact employee and customer satisfaction and the Group’s performance, better serve the communities in which
we operate, create value for our shareholders and other stakeholders and advance social equity.

Our commitment to building a global, diverse, equitable and inclusive culture starts with our senior leadership team
members, who represent a broad spectrum of backgrounds and perspectives. We believe that the diversity of our
senior leadership enhances our ability to evolve and execute our business strategy and to attract and retain diverse
and highly-qualified talent, and also fuels our commitment to foster a culture of inclusion and provide our colleagues

with equitable access to opportunities.
Impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment

Qur aperations are subject to various Jaws and regulations geverning the environment and climate change Including
those of the Environmental Agency. While environmental and climate change laws and regulations are subject to
change, such changes can be difficult to predict reliably and the timing of potential changes is uncertain. We continue
to be dedicated to envirohmental and sustainability programs to minimise the use of natural resources, reduce the
utilisation and generation of hazardous materials from our processes and remediate identified environmental

concerns.
Impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment {continued)

At Xylem, sustainability is at the centre of who we are and what we do. Since we are a leading global water
technaology company, we address some of the world’s most urgent sustainability chalfenges - responsible
stewardship of our shared water resources and resiliency of communities to climate change. Xylem approaches
business sustainability as a way to generate economic value while also creating value for society, thus meeting the
needs of hoth. Accordingly, in 2019, we evolved our approach to leverage sustainability in our decision-making
toward long-term value creation for our shareholders, customers, employees and communities in which we operate
and we announced an ambltious siate of 2025 Sustainability goals. Additionally, in 2021, Xylem announced our
commitment to reach Net Zero greenhouse gas {"GHG"] emissions before 2050 across our value chain, further
aligning our long-term commitment to sustalnability with sector-wide moves towards reduced carban footprint.

Key strategic decislons

For each matter, the Board considers the likely consequences of any decision in the lang term, Identifies stakeholders
who may be affected, and carefully considers their interests and any potential impact as part of the decision-making
process. The key strategic decisions taken during the year were informed and supported by stakeholder engagement

activitles as set out ahove.
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SECTION 172{1) STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
Likely consequences of any decision in the long term

Stakeholder considerations are an integral part of the decisions made by the Directors. At times these decisions
inevitably adversely affect one or more of the stakeholders, but the Directors ensure that any group that is impacted
is treated faitly. Qur strategic plan firmly embeds sustainability at the heart of our competitive advantage and unique
business model and aligns core strategic pillars to the overarching goal of integrating sustainability into everything
we do.

While our strategy wili evolve in response to the changing world, our four values are the enduring principles that go
ta the heart of who we are and guide how we conduct ourselves each day: Respect, Responsibility, Integrity and
Creativity. Xylem's processes and procedures take into account all stakeholders when making long-term decisions
which bare significant Importance to the Group. We have a delegation of authority process for sign off for Group
spend involving multiple stakeholders. For large scale projects, cross functional teams are established, and employee
representatives are consulted in accordance with appropriate guidelines. The Business Continuity Planning team
also ensures we have systems and processes in place for business continuity during times of change or unexpected
business disruption.

This report was approved by the Board of directors on 20 December 2023 and signed on behalf the Board by:

L3 Bentley
Director



XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors present their annual report, together with the audited consclidated financial statements and
independent auditor’s report of Xylem Water Holdings Limited (the ‘Company’) together with its subsidiaries {the
‘Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2022, The Company is registered as a limited company and domiciled in
the United Kingdom.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
The anticipated future developments of the Group have been discussed within the Strategic Report on page 6.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Xylem UK Pension Plan {(XUPP} was fully bought out on 30 September 2022 when all benefits were secured with
Rothesay Life Pl and were removed from the Group's balance sheet at that date. The scheme was not fully wound
up until 14 November 2023.

Bellingham & Stanley Limited

On 31 January 2023, Xylem announced its intention to move the production of Bellingham & Stanley Limited’s
laboratory refractometry and polarimetry products to its Weilheim, German facility. Order entry and distribution
for customers outside the UK has now fully transitioned to Weilheim, while UK customers continue to be served

within the UK but under Xylem Water Solutions UK Limited.
On 28 October 2023, Bellingham & Stanley Limited sold some of its business and assets to Xylem Analytics Germany

GmbH for £473k in exchange for cash. On the same day, Bellingham & Stanley Limited transferred its sales and
service operations to Xylem Water Solutions UK Limited in exchange for cash of £7,755k.

On 14 Navember 2023, Bellingham and Stanley Limited distributed all its remaining assets following a capital
reduction to £1 via an interim dividend paid of £7,727k and final dividend payable of £7,755k}. The final dividend is
still cutstanding.

Water Process Limited

On 31 October 2023, Water Process Limited distributed its remiaining assets via a dividend of £27,242k after a capital
reduction to £1 which took place on 27 October 2023.

Godwin Holdings Limited

On 2 Octoher 2023, Gadwin Holdings Limited transferred its entire ownership in the ordinary share capital of Xylem
Dewatering Solutions UK Limited to Xylem Water Holdings Limited.

Arrow Rentals Limited

On 1 November 2023, Arrow Rentals Limited sold its 26% ownership in Xylem Water Solutions Ireland Limited to
Xylem Swiss 1 (a fellow group company) for €830k in exchange for a 1oan note. On the same day, Arrow Rentals
Limited distributed all its assets via a dividend of €830k to B S Pumps Ltd. Thereafter, BS Pumps Limited sold its
interests in Arrow Rentals Limited to Xylem Water Solutions ireland Limited (a fellow group company) for €69k in
exchange for a loan note. Xylem Water Solutions Ireland Limited then absorbad Arrow Rentals Limited under the

irish domestic merger regime.

BS Pumps Limited

On 1 November 2023, BS Pumps Limited distributed all its assets via a dividend of €899k to Xylem Water Solutions
UK Limited.

Xylem Water Holdings Limited

On 26 September 2023, Sensus Metering Systems (LuxCo 3) S.a.r.l. {a fellow group company) transferred the shares
of Sensus (UK Holdings} Limited (a feflow group company) to Xylem Water Holdings Limited for a consideration of

£105,557k in exchange for cash,
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RESEARCH AND DEVLOPMENT

The R&D activity in 2022 and going inte 2023 is focused on three main areas, bringing new innovative pump products
to market such as the ultra-high head-pump and the €D200S, bringing the hydraulics of existing products to the
fatest pump performance standards and starting to look at alternative fuels to diesel to power Godwin pumps.
Hydraulic design uses the Jatest CFD technology to optimise the pump performance, combined with extensive testing
and product evaluation to validate performance predictions. Diesel engines continue to be legisiated against and
may one day be hanned in many of cur markets, using fossil fuels is not sustainable and does not fit with Xylems
2050 Net Zero policy. R&D will jook at expanding our electric portfolio as well as looking at new technologies such
as Hydragen Fuel cells and Hydrogen Combustion Engines to ensure the Godwin product range keeps up to date.
The combination of high efficiency pumps and the Jatest drive technologies makes the Godwin products one of the
leading pump manufacturers in the portable pumping market.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In order to maintain liquidity te ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments, the Group focuses on efficient working capital management.

The directors consider the banking and group facilities available to the Group are adequate going forward. The
Group participates in bank balance pooling at the end of each day, giving rise to an intercompany balance with Xylem
Europe GrabH (a Group Treasury Facility). The credit risk on Equid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with internationally recognised credit ratings. The Group has na signiffcant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers. The Group is exposed to changes in variable
interest rates but this is seen as minimal since the loans are not external to Xylem as they are from Group Treasury.

The Group has minimaf currency and commodity price risks {n relation to purchases as the majority are made from
Group suppliers who invoice in Sterling. in relation to sales, there is some exposure as some customers are involced
in foreign currency. However, the directors consider the exposure to be minimal as the total amount invoiced in
foreign currency is minimal compared to the total turnover.

GOING CONCERN

Our future financial results of operations are subject to change due to inherent risks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond our centrol. Our actiens have focused on preserving our financial resilience and strategically
positicning of the Group for new customer needs and market trends accelerated by the pandemic. The global
market supply and demand dynamics, have adversely affected, and are expected to continue to adversely affect,
aur supply chains. We have experienced and expect to cantinue experiencing shortages in the supply of components,
parts and raw materials.

To help mitigate the effects of these challenges and increase the resilience of our supply chain, we continue to
enhance and augment our risk management activities, including supplier pulsing and redundancy. Additionally, we
continue to take measures with respect to buffer stock, the use of alternative suppliers and redesign of certain
products to mitigate the impacts of the ongoing supply chain, freight and logistics delays and holster our access to
electronics, parts and raw materials.

The UK Group is supported by its ultimate parent company, Xylem Inc,, via loans from Xylem Europe GmbH, the
ultimate parent has confirmed that financial support will be continued in order to allow the group companies to
meet liabilities as they bacome due and to carry on business without significant curtailment of operations for 12
months from the date of signing the financial statements. The directors have reviewed details of Xylem Europe
GmbH access to credit and loan facilities and the cash flow position and have a reasanable expectation that the
Xylem Inc. have sufficient financial resources available tc provide support in the future.

10



XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

GOING CONCERN (CONTINUED)

The Q3 2023 consolidated results of Xylem [nc, reported total revenue of $2.1 billion, with reported growth of 50%
and organic growth of 10%, surpassing prior guidance, on strong commercial and operational execution. Orders were
up 43% on a reported basis and up 3% organically, while backlog grew to $5.2 billion, up 5% organicaily. Third quarter
adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) margin was 19.8%, reflecting a vear-
over-year increase of 150 basis points. Adjusted EBITDA margin was 18.9%, up 60 basis points over the prior year
period. Strong price realizaliun mure than offset intlation and, coupled with productivity savings and higher volume,
drove the margin expansion, exceeding the impact of strategic investments, Xylem pow expects full-year 2023
revenue of approximately $7.3 hillion, up approximately 32% on a reported basis and up approximately 11% on an
organic basis. Full-year 2023 adjusted EBITDA margin is expected to be approximately 19% driven by continuing
strong demand, and commercial and operational momentum.

The directars are satisfied that the risks have been identified and that the plans in place will enable the UK Group to
deal with the challenges and minimize the financial impact. Overall, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the UK Group will continue to operate effectively and are confident in receiving continued access to financial
resources from Xylem Inc. such that the Group has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable
future. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

DIVIDENDS

The directors are not proposing to pay a dividend in 2022 {2021: £nil). No dividends have heen proposed since the
year end.

DIRECTORS ‘

The directors who served during the year and to the date of the approval of the financial statements are shown
below:

M A Turner

| LThompson

P A Morris

L 4 Bentley
K A Knight

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ liahility insurance. All the Group's directars have received an indemnity
tathe extent permitted by law from the Group. Neither the indemnity nor the insurance provides cover in situations
where a director has acted fraudulently or dishonestly.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations of £nil (2021: £1k) were made during the year.

BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS

Throughout 2022 the Group continued to maintain its close working relationships with suppliers, customers and
others which included a supplier management process, review meetings with key suppliers addressing concerns,
regular touchpoints with key customers from fleld staff and management and ensuring that any disputes or
disagreements were followed up in a timely manner.
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS (CONTINUED)

Given there was a change in the leadership in late 2019, some initiatives to get closer to our suppliers, customers
and other partners commenced later in that year and are ongoing in 2022. This includes facilitating closer
relationships with key customers/segments and also leveraging our full Xylem offering to meet their needs. See the
S$172 statement within the Strategic Repart for further details on the need to foster the company’s business
relationships with suppiiers, customers and others, and the effect of that regard, including on the principai decisions
taken by the company during the financial year.

Our marketing team engaged stakeholders through targeted campaigns and webinars, resulting in leads and
feedback.

DISABLED EMPLOYEES

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concerned, In the event of the members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that
their employment with the Group continues and that the appropriate level of training is arranged. It is the policy of
the Group that training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should as far as possible, be
identical to that of other employees.

EMPLOYEE CONSULTATION

The Group places considerabie value on the involvement of its employees and continues to keep them infarmed on
matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Group, Details of
employees and various headcount related information is highlighted in note 7 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

The directors of the Group have engaged with employees across the year in a number of ways including but not
limited to:

s Online town halls and communications meetings, communicating business results and ermployee
recognitions.

*  Watermark activities which encourage our staff to participate in activities which benefit our comsnunities and
fink to the Group's mission, vision and values.

+ Safety engagement initiatives such as safety walks, safety chats program and a specific safety game, which
resulted in the business winning Xylem’s CEO Safety Award.

» Regular meetings with aur employee representatives, skip level meetings with different layers of staff across
different geographies, and discussions with cur Human Resources staff, discussing various topics such as
change, training and development, engagement, communications and the wark environment.

As a result of feedhack, we have had a particular focus on communicating business results and employee wellbeing.
This has resulted in:

* The roliout, promotion and use of our Mental Heaith First Aider program and associated initiatives to
encourage peer {o peer support.

*  More use of XylemNow, our company communication web page to share business wins, local information
and promote a sense of unity among the team particularly for remote employees.

* A specific engagement program with dedicated training on change management and peer support, for the
rollout of ServiceMax, cur Service Management system in 2020.

« Regular Site Communications meetings at key sites.
+ The launch of a new employee reward and recognition program.

* Regular communication about our Employee Assistance Program to ensure that employees who are
struggling in their home or work life are getting the support they need.

* Improved quality of exit interviews for leavers and tracking of employee attrition, to better identify actions
impacting attrition and morale.
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT {(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ENVIRONMENT

The Group recognises the importance of its environmental responsibilities and employs Fnvironment, Health and
Safety Managers to ensure that the Group operates within Xylem policies and implements initiatives designed to
minimise the Group’s impact on the environment, including safe disposal of manufacturing waste, recycling and

reducing energy consumption.

The Group Is committed to controlling, so far as reasonably practicable, the impacts on the environment through
the way we conduct our business and the supply of products to our customers. It is the intention of the management
team to conduct business in a manner that meets the needs of today without compromising the needs of future
generations, maintaining a sustainable future. To achieve this the Group wili:

* Ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and other standards to which the company
subscribes and is required to meet.

+ Prevent and/or reduce the risk of pollution through soil, air and water

* Enhance employee health, safety, and welfare

= Participate in community projects and development

* Ensure the protection of the public from operational hazards

* Minimise the consumption of natural resources in the supply, maintenance and repair of our products

* Reduce energy consumption at all facilities

s Reduction of waste to landfill

* Provide documented operating policles and procedures

* Promote aims and objectives through the supply chain

* Maintaining our 1SO 14001 certification

The Directors, Heads of Departments and all Managers of the Group believe that sustainability is core to everything
it does and give thefr full support to realise our 2025 Sustainability Targets to create a more water-sectire
world. Actively our sustainability groups across the UK are working on our key objectives, to reflect our commitment
to soiving the major water challenges and minimize our environmental footprint,

Qur manufacturing facilities are priaritized for improvement efforts aimed at reducing their environmental impacts,
they have focused on energy efficiency and emission reduction efforts. We aim to achieve 100% renewable energy,
100% process water recycling, and zero waste to landfill from pracesses. Qur manufacturing site Quenington,
through projects commenced in 2019 has met these targets but continues to focus on emission reduction projects:

& Pump testing is conducted on a closed water foop system, and when the system is cleaned, tankers remove

the water to a treatment plant for processing.

s During 2015 and 2020 waterless urinals and sensor taps were installed and pipework throughout the
location was Inspected eliminating any identified leaks.

*  In 2021 Quenington achieved 100% 2ero waste to landfill by changing contractors and redirecting all general
waste to Energy from Waste processing. All waste streams were identified to ascertain their final
destination and contractors were contacted to ensure no waste was taken to fandfifl.

s A 100% renewable energy contract was sourced and activated in 2019,

ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING

Xylem is committed to the protection of the environment and the reduction of its carbon footprint. Changes
introduced by the 2018 Regulations of the Companies Act 2016 require the Directors to report on the energy and

carbon information relating to the Group.

The related carban footprint, measured by tCO2e tonnes, is calcutated from the usage data submitted for energy
usage from gas and electric, outbound product deliver, and business travel activity. Conversion factors are applied
on the basis of business location. UX based data is converted using the UK Department for Environment Food &
Rural Affairs (DEFRA) tCO2e factors. Conversion factors are updated annually to reflect the factors published by
DEFRA that are in effect as of 31 December each reporting year.
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED])
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (CONTINUED)

The total annua! energy consumption for the year ending 31 December 2022 was 12,844,712 kWh, which provides

total CO2e emissions of 3,226 tonnes, as indicated below.

2022 2021
Emissions Energy Emissions - Energy
-1C0O;ze consumption tCOze consumption
used to calculate used to
the emissions — calculate the
kwh emissions - kWh
Scope 1 [Direct) GHG emissions:
Combustion of gas in buiidings 166 910,758 255 1,391,744
Combustion of fuel for transport purposes 2,334 8,887,865 2,040 8,519,860
Combustion of LPG in buildings and on-site transport 43 175,246 47 170,842
Combustion of gas oil in buildings 251 977,601 403 1,570,899
Scope 1 total 2,799 16,951,470 2,745 11,653,345
Scope 2 (Indirect) GHG emissions:
Purchase of electricity for buildings {location-based grid 360 1,862,594 566 2,664,439
average)
Scope 2 total 350 1,852,594 566 2,668,439
Scope 3 [Other Indirect) GHG emissions:
Business travel in employee-owned vehicles 34 30,648 26 104,883
UK electricity Transmission & Distribution 33 50
Scope 3 total &7 30,648 76 104,883
Totals 3,226 12,844,712 3,387 14,422,667
Revenue - £Em 241 231
Intensity ratio:
tCO2e gross figure / £m revenue 13 15

AUDRITOR

Pursuant to section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be re-appointed and Deloltte

LLP with therefore continue in office.

DISLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

Each of the persons who are a director of the Group at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

* Sofar as each of the directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditer is

unaware; and

+ each of the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves
aware of any refevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act

2006.

This report was approved by the Board of directors on 20 December 2023 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

&Y

L) Bentley
Director
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable it the UK and Republic of ireland”. Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the group and parent
company financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed; and

+ prepare the financia! statements on the going concern basis unless it is Inappropriate to presume that the
group and parent company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
group and parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the group and parent company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and parent company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The directars are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information ihcluded
on the Group’s website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of Xylem Water Holdings Limited (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries
(the ‘group’):

= give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December
2022 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 *The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of ireland”; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2606.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

= the consolidated profit and ioss account;

= the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated balance sheet;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity;

the consolidated cash flow statement;

the reconciliation of group net cash flow to movement in net debt;
» the related consolidated group notes 1 to 28;

+ the parent company batance sheet;

s the parent company statement of changes in equity; and

» the related parent company notes 1 to 11.

. ® @

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicabie law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing {UK} {I5As {(UK)} and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethicat requirements that are
refevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financiat Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’)
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsikilities in accordance with these requirements. We
helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directars’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individuatly ar collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent company’s ability
to continue as a going concern for o period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion onh the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materfally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. i we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsibie for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true andfair view, and for such internal control
as the directars determine Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company’s abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the
economic declsions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements s located on the FRC’s website
at: www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect materia! misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group’s industry and its control environment and reviewed the group’s
documantation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compllance with jaws and regulations, We
also enquired of management and the directors about their own identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities, including those that are specific to the group’s business sector.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the group operates in, and identified the
key laws and regulations that:

* had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures In the financial statements.

These included UK Companies Act and pension and tax legislation and
* do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compilance with which may be fundamental to

the group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists such as pensions and IT
regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where

fraud might occur in the financial statements,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
{CONTINUED)

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud (continued)

In common with alt audits under ISAs {UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the
risk of management override, In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

s reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

+ performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud;

= enquiring of management, and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims,
and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

= reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing correspondence with HMRC.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or
the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Use of aur report

This report is made solely to the company’'s members, as a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members these
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

v
Joanna Waring FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Birmingham, United Kingdom

Date: 20 December 2023
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Notes £'000 £'000
Turnover
Continuing operations 4 237,019 207,329
Discontinued operations 4 3,537 23,333
Total turnover 3 240,556 230,662
Cost of sales (191,049) {189,790)
Gross profit
Cantinuing operations : 4 49,389 37,519
Discontinued operations 4 118 3,353
Total gross profit 49,507 40,872
Administrative expenses (20,009) {20,044)
Selling and distribution expenses (23,595) (21,491)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 99 1,185
Other operating income 5 280 2,463
Operating profit/{loss)
Continuing operations 4 6,218 (422)
Discontinued operations 4 64 3,407
Total operating profit 6 6,282 2,985
Dividends received 283 630
Profit before interest and taxation 7,165 3,615
Interest receivabie and similar income 9 729 4
Interest payabfe and similar charges 10 {4,162) {3,918)
Other finance costs 11 {188) (179)
Profit/{loss) before taxation 3,544 (478)
Tax charge on profit/{loss) 12 (47) {1,733)
Profit/{loss) for the financial year 3,497 (2,211)

Notes 1 to 28 on pages 25 to 58 form an integra! part of these financial statements.

19



XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Nates £'000 £000
Profit/{loss) for the financlal year 3,497 {(2,211)
Other comprehensive income/(expense):
Deferred tax charge relating to other comprehensive income 19 (1,037) {1,385)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pensien scheme 20 4,188 4,247
Tota! comprehensive income for the year 6,648 650

Notes 1 to 28 on pages 25 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Net liabilities before provisions
Provisions for liabilities — Defined benefit pension liability

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

Total deficit

Notes 1 to 28 on pages 25 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

13
14

15
16

17

138

20

21
21
21

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Restated

{see note 1)

645 194
8,521 7,466
9,166 7,660
21,826 18,707
137,552 135,029
3,942 3,613
163,320 157,349
{57,491) (126,555)
105,829 30,794
114,995 38,454
(118,143) (45,103)
{4,148) {6,649}
{2,903) (7,050)
{7,051) {13,699)
2 2
271,999 271,999
{279,052) (285,700)
{7,051) (13,699)

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 December 2023 and are signed on its

behalf by:

(- Boattr

L J Bentley
Director

Registered number: 07618426
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Share Profit and
Called up premium loss
share capital account account Tatal
£000 £'000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2021 2 271,999 (286,350) {14,349)
Loss for the financial year - - (2,211) (2,211)
Other comprehensive income/(expense):
Deferred tax charge relating to other
comprehensive income (note 19) - ~ {1,386) {1,386)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension
scheme (note 20) - - 4,247 4,247
Balance at 31 December 2021 2 271,999 (285,70G) (13,699}
Share Profit and
Called up premivm loss
share capital account account Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
At 1 January 2022 2 271,999 (285,700) (13,699)
Praofit for the financial year - - 3,497 3,497
Other corprehensive income/{expense}:
Deferred tax charge relating to other
comprehensive income (note 19) - - {1,037) {1,037)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension
scheme (note 20} - - 4,188 4,188
Balance at 31 December 2022 2 271,999 {279,052} (7,051}

Notes 1 to 28 on pages 25 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Notes £'000 £7000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 22 4,422 1,684
Returns from investments and servicing of finance:
Interest reccived 43 4
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of
finance 48 4
Income tax paid (1,238) -
Investing activities
Purchase to acquire tangible assets (3,442) (2,280)
Purchase to acquire intangible assets {481} (166) -
Receipts from sales of tangible assets 1,033 1,397
Net cash outflows for capital expenditure and financial
investment {2,890) {1,049)
Net cash inflow before financing activities 342 639
Financing activities:
Finance lease repayments {12} (12)
interest paid on finance iease (1) {1}
Net cash outflow from financing activities (13) {13)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 329 626

Notes 1 to 28 on pages 25 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS UMITED

RECONCILIATION OF GROUP NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes

Increase in cash 22
Net repayment of finance leases 22
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows

Other non-cash movements 22
Movement in net debt

Opening net debt 22
Closing net debt 22

Notes 1 1o 28 on pages 25 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2022 2021
£000 £'000
329 626

12 12

341 638

(51) -

280 638
(115,444) (116,082}
{115,154} (115,444)
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1. Accounting policies

Company information

Xylem Water Holdings Limited (“the company”) is a private limited company, limited by shares, domiciled and
incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006. The registered office is at Private Road
No 1, Colwick Industrial Estate, Nottingham, United Kingdom, NG4 2AN. The company’s principal activity is
to act as a holding company for a group of companies which are involved in the manufacture of products and
provision of services within the water industry.

Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FR$ 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard

applicahle in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,
including the provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups [Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2016, and under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements are presented in sterling which Is the functional currency of the Group. Menetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000, except where otherwise

indicated.

Basls of consalidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the

policies adopted by the Group.

No profit or loss account is present for the Company as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.
The foss for the financial year of the Company was £1,835k (2021: loss of £2,498k).

The financial statements of the Group are consolidated in the financial statements of Xylem Inc. The
consolidated financial statements of Xylem Inc. are available from its registered office at 301 Water Street

SE, Washington, DC 20003, USA.

Subsidiary audit exemptions
Xylem Water Holdings Limited has issued guarantees over the liahilities of the following companies at 31

December 2022 under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006 and these entities are exempt from the
requirements of the Act relating to the audit of their individual financial statements by virtue of section 4794

of the Act:

* Xylem Water Solutions UK Holdings Limited {registered no. 04464243)
Bellingham & Stanley Limited {registered no. 00140250}

Xylem Water Setrvices Limited (registered na. 02553725}

Xylem Water Solutions UK Limited {registered no. 00479504)

Water Process Limited {registered no. 04523662}

» Xylem Water Solutions Rugby Limited (registered no. 02755486)

* Xylem Dewatering Solutions UK Limited (registered no. 00254887}

* & =

-

Discontinued operations
Discontinued operations relates to divisions which have been disposed of or ceased trading in the year.

Results relating to discontinued operations have been presented separately in the consolidated profit and
loss account.
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XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern

Our future financial resuits of operations are subject to change due to inherent risks and uncertainties, many
of which are beyond our control. Our actions have focused on preserving our financial resilience and
strategically positioning of the Group for new customer needs and market trends accelerated by the
pandemic. The global market supply and demand dynamics, have adversely affected, and are expected to
continue to adversely affect, our supply chains. We have experienced and expect to continue experiencing
shortages in the supply of components, parts and raw materials.

To help mitigate the effects of these challenges and increase the resilience of our supply chain, we continue
to enhance and augment our risk management activities, including supplier pulsing and redundancy.
Additionafly, we continue to take measures with respect to buffer stock, the use of alternative suppliers and
redesign of certain products to mitigate the impacts of the engolng supply chain, freight and Jogistics delays
and bolster our access to electronics, parts and raw materials.

The UK Group is supported by its ultimate parent company, Xylem Inc., via loans from Xylem Europe GmbH,
the ultimate parent has confirmed that financial support wili be continued in order to allow the group
companies Yo meet liabilities as they become due and to carry on business without significant curtailment of
aperations for 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements. The directors have reviewed
details of Xylem Europe GmbH access to credit and loan facilities and the cash flow position and have a
reasonable expectation that the Xylem inc. have sufficient financial resources available to provide support in
the future.

The Q3 2023 consalidated results of Xylem Inc, reported total revenue of $2.1 billion, with reported growth
of 50% and organic growth of 10%, surpassing prior guidance, on strong cemmercial and operational
execution. Orders were up 43% on a reported basis and up 3% organically, while backlog grew to $5.2 bitfion,
up 5% organically. Third quarter adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amartization
[EBITDA) margin was 19.8%, reflecting a year-over-year increase of 150 basis points. Adjusted EBITDA margin
was 18.9%, up 60 basis points over the prior year period. Strong price realization more than offset inflation
and, coupled with productivity savings and higher volume, drove the margin expansion, exceeding the impact
of strategic investments. Xylem now expects full-year 2023 revenue of approximately $7.3 billion, up
approximately 32% on a reported basis and up approximatety 11% on an organic basis, Full-year 2023
adjusted EBITDA margin is expected to be approximately 19% driven by continuing strong demand, and
commercial and operational momentum.

The directors are satisfied that the risks have been identified and that the plans in place will enable the UK
Group to deal with the challenges and minimize the financial impact, Overall, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the UK Group will continue to operate effectively and are confident in receiving continued
access to finandial resources from Xylem Inc. such that the Group has adequate resources to continue
operating for the foreseeable future. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Turnover

Turnover is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods,
services and rental of equipment to external customers in the ordinary nature of the business. The fair value
of consideration takes into account trade discounts, settlement discounts and volume rebates. Turnover is
shown net of Value Added Tax.

Turnover from the sale of goods is recognised when it and the associated casts can be measured reliably,
future economic benefits are probable, and the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
custamer. Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered, and legat title has passed, and the Group
has no continuing managerial Involvement associated with ownership or effective control of the goods sold.
This is generaily when goods have been checked and accepted by the customer on delivery at the specified
location.
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1. Accounting policies {continued)

Turnaver (continued)

Turnover for the supply of services represents the value of services provided under contracts to that the
extent that there is a right to a consideration received or receivable, Where a contract has only been partially
completed at the balance sheet date, turnover represents the fair value of the service provided based on the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date. Where payments are received from
customers in advance of the service provided, the amounts are recorded as deferred income and included as
part of creditors due within one year.

Turnover from the rental of equipment is recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreement. Incame is determined on a time basis recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the agreement.

Turnover from services provided to Xylem Europe GmbH is based on a mark-up of costs as per the contract
for the provision of services between the Company and Xylem Europe GmbH, Turnover is recognised when
costs incurred can be estimated refiably and is shown net of Value Added Tax. It is recognised at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable for services provided in normal course of business.

Long-term contracts
When the outcome of a long-term contract can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that the contract

wili be profitable, turnover and costs are recognised over the period of the contract.

When it Is probable that total contract costs will exceed totzl contract turnover, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a long-term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract turnover is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs that are recoverable and the contract costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion method” to determine the appropriate amaunt of turnover
to recognize in a given period. The stage of completion is determined by assessing the physical proportion of
completed contract wark. Costs that have been incurred in relation to the stage of completion are
recognized, whereas costs that have been invaiced but not yet incurred are presented as stocks, prepayments
or other assets, depending on their nature and provided It is probable they will be recavered.

Bank interest accruing en capital borrowed to fund the production of long-term contracts is carried forward
within long-term contract balances.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised on the accrual model and are measured at the fair value of the asset

received or receivable. Grants relating to revenue are classified within other operating Income within the
period in which the receipt relates.

Research and development

Research is original and planned investigation, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding. Development is the application of research findings or other
knowledge to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices,
products, processes, systems, or services, before the start of commercial production or use.

Costs in relation to research and development activities are expensed through the profit and loss account
within the same period the cost is incurred.

Finance income

Finance income relates to interest received and is recognised in the profit and loss account on an accruals
basis.
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1.

Accounting policies {continued)

Borrowing costs

The costs of borrowing on interest bearing loans are recognised in the profit and loss account on an accruals
basis. Interest is calculated using the effective interest rates determined by the prevailing market interest
rates.

The Group has applied the following amendments to FRS 102 issued by the FRC for the first time during the
prior year. The amendments issued by the FRC in December 2020, The amendments enable the entity to
reflect the effects of transitioning from LIBOR to SONIA without giving rise to accounting impacts that would
not provide useful information to users of financial statements. The Group is exposed to SONIA in its
intercompany loan balances.

Intangible assets - goodwill
Goodwillis capitalised and written off evenly over 5-10 years as in the opinion of the directors, this represents
the period over which the goodwill is expected to give rise to economic benefits.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangibie assets arising on a business combination are recognised, except where the asset arises from {egaf
or cantractual rights, and there is no history or evidence of exchange transactions for the same or similar
assets and estimating the asset’s fair value would depend on immeasurable variables,

Intangible assels are initlally recognised at cost (which for intangible assets acquired in a business
comblination is the fair value at acquisition date) and are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amaortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets relate to purchased software and
acquired trademarks. Intangible assets are amartised to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives, as foillows:

Software . 3to 5 years

Amortisation is revised prospectively for any significant change in useful life or residual value,

On disposal the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset
is recognised in the profit and lass account.

Tanglble assets
Tangible assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost, net of depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible assets, other than assets under the course of construction, at rates
calculated to write off the cost or valuation of each asset to its estimated residual value on a straight-line
basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Long leasehold land & building improvements  over life of lease

Freehold improvements 2% to 5%

Plant & machinery 10% to 33%
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
Fixtures, fittings & computer equipment 10% to 33%

Residual value is calculated on prices prevailing at the reporting date, after estimated costs of disposal, for
the asset as if it were at the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. Freehold land and
assets under the course of construction are not being depreciated.

On disposal the difference between the net disposal praceeds and the carrying amaount of the asset is
recognised in the profit and loss account.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets

At each reporting end date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss {if any). Where It Is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allacated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonabile and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recaverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than the carrying
amount, the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Recognised impalrment losses are reversed if, and only If, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased
to apply. Where an Impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset [or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that wouid have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit} in prior years. A reversal of an impairment Joss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell based on

standard costs. Cost includes direct materfal and labour costs and an attributable proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on hormal levels of activity. Costs is calculated using the FIFO (first-in, first-

out) method,

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether stocks are impaired or If an impairment loss recognised
in prior periods has reversed. Any excess of the carrying amount of stock over its estimated selling price less
costs to complete and sell Is recognised as an impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in the profit and loss account.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilitles.

{i} Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price {including transaction costs),
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are Initially measured
at fair value (which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the arrangement
constitutes a financing transaction. If an arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of

interest for a similar debt instrument.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments {continued)
{i} Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the balance sheet when, and only when there exists a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Debt instruments that comply with all of the condition of paragraph 11.9 of FRS 102 are classified as ‘basic’.
For debt instruments that do not meet the conditions of FRS 102.11.9, the Group considers whether the debt
instrument is consistent with the principle in paragraph 11.9A of FRS 102 in order ta determine whether it
can be classified as basic. Instruments classified as ‘basic’ financial instruments are measured subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments that have no stated interest rate
{and do not constitute financing transaction) and are classified as payable or receivable within one year are
initially measured at an undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or
receijved, nhet of impairment,

With the exception of some hedging instruments, other deht instruments not meeting conditions of being
‘basic’ financial instruments are measured at fair value through the profit and loss account.

Commitments ta make and receive laans which meet the conditions mentioned above are measured at cost
{which may be nil} less impairment.

Financia! assets are derecognised when and only when a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or are settled, b) the Group transfers to another party substantially ali of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or c} the Group, despite having retained some, but not all,
significant risks and rewards of ownership, has transferred control of the asset to another party.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

{ii) Investments

Investments in non-derivative Instruments that are equity of the issuer (where shares are publicly traded, or
their fair value Is reliably measurable) are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Where fair value
cannot be measured reliably, investments are measured at cost less impairment.

In the Company balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries and associates are measured at cost less
impairment. For investments in subsidiaries acquired for consideration including the issue of shares qualifying
for merget relief, cost is measured by reference to the nominat value of the shares issued pius fair value of
other consideration. Any premium is ignored.

(ii1) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the falr value of cash or other resources recelved
or receivable, net of transaction costs.

{iv) Derivative financial instruments

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk and
interest rate movements. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes.

{v) Fair value measurement

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market. When quoted
prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset provides evidence of fair value
as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances or a significant lapse of time
since the transaction took place. If the market is not active and recent trapsactions of an identical asset on
their own are not a good estimate of fair value, the fair value is estimated by using a valuation technique.
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1. Accounting policies {continued}

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax expense. Current tax assets
are recognise when tax paid exceeds the tax payable.

Current and deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when it relates to items
charged or credited to other comprehensive income aor equity, when the tax follows the transaction or event
it relates to and is also charged or credited to other comprehensive income, or eguity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, if and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liabHity simultanecusly.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from total comprehensive income
because it excludes items of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods. Current tax
assets and lizbilities are measured using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date,

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised,
or the llability js settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. Deferred tax is not discounted.

Deferred tax liabilities are recaognised in respect of all timing differences that exist at the reporting date.
Timing differences are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from
the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in different periods from their recognition in the
financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they will
be recovered by the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset anly if: a) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate 1o income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabllities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting end date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the

obligation is recognised at present value. When a provision is measured at present value the unwinding of
the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the profit and loss account in the period it arises.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are

required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitiement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are
received.

Retirement benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme and also contributes to three separate Group retirement

benefit schemes,
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1. Accounting policies {continued)

Retirement benefits {continued)

Defined contribution plan ‘

The amount charged to profit or loss in respect of pension costs and other post-retirement benefits represent
the contributions payable in the year by the Group. Differences between contributions payabie in the year
and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments.

Defined benefit schemes

The Group is a member of three Group defined benefit schemes. The assets of the schemes are managed
separately from those of the Company. The costs recognised by the Group are determined, where applicable,
by contractual agreements for charging the defined benefit costs between the Group and other group
companies.

The defined benefit schemes are valued every three years by a professionally qualified independent actuary.
These plans have now closed. The cost of providing benefits under each defined benefit scheme is
determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method and is based on actuarial advice.

The change in the defined benefit asset/ (liability) arising from employee service during the year is recognised
as an employee cost within operating profit or loss. The cost of plan introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments are recognised as incurred.

The net interest element is determined by multiplying the defined benefit liability by the discount rate, taking
into account any changes in the defined benefit liahility during the period as a result of contribution and
benefit payments. The net interest is recognised in profit or loss as other finance revenue or cost.

Re-measurement changes comprise actuarial gains and Josses, the effect of the asset cailing and the return
on the defined benefit liabitity excluding amounts included in net finance income/{cost). These are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not reclassified to
profit and loss in subsequent periods.

The defined benefit pension asset/{liability) in the balance sheet comprises the total for each plan of the
present value of the defined benefit obfigation (using a discount rate based an high quality corporate bonds),
less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. Fair value is based on
market price information, and in the case of quoted securities is the published bid price. The value of a
pension henefit asset is limited to the amount that may be recovered either through reduced contributions
or agreed refunds from the scheme,

Share-based payments — Xylem Group plans

The Group participates in a share-based payment arrangement granted to its employees and employees of
its subsidiaries. The Group has elected to recognise and measure its share-based payment expense on the
basis of a reasanable allocation of the expense for the group. The directors consider the number of unvested
options granted to the Group’s employees compared to the total unvested options granted under the group
plan to be a reasonable basis for allocating the expense.

Leases

Assets held under finance lease, hire purchase contracts and other similar arrangements, which confer rights
and obligations similar to those attached to owned assets, are capitalised as tangible fixed assets at the fair
value of the leased asset (or, if lower, the present value of the minimum leas payment as determined at the
inception of the lease) are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and their useful lives. The capitai
element of future lease obligations is recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the
profit and loss account over the period of the lease to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.
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Accounting policles {continucd}

Leases (continued)

Rentals under operating leases are charged an a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments
are not made on such a basis, Benefits received and recelvable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are
similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the Jease term.

Foreign exchange
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are initially recorded at the exchange rate

prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transtated
at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction, or, if the asset or liability is measured at fair value, the rate
when that fair value was determined. :

All translation differences are taken to profit or loss, except to the extent that they relate to gains or losses
on non-maonetary items recognised in other comprehensive income, when the retated transiation gain or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Restatement
During the current year management have revised the format of the balance sheet to better reflect the
regqulrements of the Companies Act 2006 which is deemed to be a change of accounting policy. The following

changes have been made:
The heading ‘Non-Current Assets’ has been renamed as 'Fixed Assets’,

The deferred tax asset balance in the priar year of £2,709k has been reclassified from a non-current asset to
debtors: amounts due within one year on the balance sheet.

The ‘defined henefit pension liability’ has been renamed as ‘Provisions for liabilities — Defined benefit pension
liability’.

Critical accounting estimates and Judgements

Estirnates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and ljabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

Pension scheme - estimate

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/{income}
for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
pension obligations. The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the
interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected
to be required to settle the pension obligations. There is no exposure on the bought in liabilities which

reduces the risk. See note 20,

There are not considered to be any critical judgements.

33



XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. Turnover

An analysis of the Group’s revenue (including turnover) by category is as follows:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Sale of goods 198,285 194,044
Rendering of services 30,162 24,764
Income from long term contracts 5,107 6,246
Rental income 7,002 5,608
240,556 230,662

An analysis of the geographical location of the Group’s turnover is as follows:
2022 2021
£'000 £000
United Kingdom 168,936 141,875
Rest of Europe 65,442 82,721
Rest of World 6,178 6,066
240,556 230,662

4. Discantinued operations

In accordance with Xylem’s strategy to develop manufacturing centres of excellence, optimise our footprint
and remain competitive in the marketplace to better serve cur customers, changes to our Speciality Flow
Centre (SFC} site in Hoddesdon have taken place, where the SFC production has now fully transitioned to
Hungary with our SFC support remaining in the UK. Results of the manufacturing division are disclosed as
discontinued operations since all manufacturing ceased on 27 March 2022,

2022
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Turncver 237,018 3,537 240,556
Cost of sales {187,630) (3,419) {191,049)
Gross profit 49,389 118 49,507
Administrative expenses {19,990) {18) {20,009)
Selling and distribution expenses (23,595) - (23,595)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 134 (35) a9
Other operating income 280 - 280
Operating profit 6,218 64 6,282
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4,

5.

Piscontinued operations {continued)

2021
Continuing Discontinued
operations aperations Tatal
£000 £'000 £000
Turnover 207,329 23,333 230,662
Cost of sales {169,810} (19,980) {189,79Q)
Gross profit 37,519 3,353 40,872
Adrninistrative expenses (20,044) - (20,044)
Selling and distribution expenses (21,491} - (21,491)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 1,148 37 1,185
Other operating income 2,447 i6 2,463
Operating profit (422) 3,467 2,985
Other operating income
2022 2021
£°000 £006
Defined benefit pensian credits (note 20) 280 2,410
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme income - 53
280 2,463

The Group receives contributions to its defined benefit pension plan (XUPP) from Xylem Europe GmbH, a

felfow group company.

Operating profit
2022

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting): £000
Amortisation of intangible assets {note 13) 30
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets {note 14) 1,489
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets held under finance lease

{note 14) 14
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (99}
fees payable to the Group's auditor for services In relation to:

- audit of the Group financial statements 320
- audit of the Company financial statements 15
Exchange (gains)/losses {180}
Stock provision expense 480
Operating lease charges 4,818
R&D Expenditure 1,147

2021
£000

4,847
1,648

12
{1,185}

315
15
505
1,507
4,024
1,385
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7. Staff costs

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Redundancy costs

Furlough payments

Pension costs — Defined contribution pension {note 20)
Share based payments (note 26)

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
42,491 37,340
4,847 4,040
132 242

- 53

2,549 2,351
296 162
50,315 44,188

The average monthly number of persons {including directors) employed by the Group during the year was as

fallows:

Management

Production

Warehouse and distribution
Selling and marketing
Administration

R&D

8. Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ emoluments
Group contributions to money purchase pension schemes

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits are accruing

under:

Defined contribution schemes

Mo share options were exercised or granted in the year (2021: none).

2022 2021
No, No.
15 15
57 105
294 255
237 213
232 206
8 14
843 808
2022 2021
£000 £000
856 697
43 37
897 734
2022 2021
No. No.
5 5
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8.

10.

11,

Directars’ remuneration {continued)

Remuneration disclosed above Includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

Director’'s emoluments
Group contributions to money purchase pension schemes

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
360 290
15 14
375 304

The highest pzid director did not exercise any share options in the year and had no shares receivable under

long term incentive schemes.

Interest recelvahle and similar income

Bank interest receivable
Interest receivable from group companjes
Interest receivable from HMRC

Interest payable and similar charges

Interest payable on finance leases
Interest payable to group companies
interest payable to HMRC

Other finance costs

Net finance costs on defined benefit plans {note 20)

2022 2021
£000 £/000
- 3

681 1
48 -
729 4
2022 2021
£000 £'000
1 1
4,161 3,827
- 90
4,162 3,918
2022 2021
£000 £'000
188 179
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12, Taxation

Current tax

UK corporation tax

Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Total current tax

Deferred tax

Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Tax rate change

Total deferred tax

Total tax charge

¥actors affecting current tax charge

2022 2021
£000 £000
430 (54
{513) 1,489
{83) 1,435
130 509

- {211)

130 2908
a7 1,733

The tax charge for the year is lower {2021: charge is higher) than the average standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK for the year ended 31 December 2022 of 19% (2021: 19%). These differences are reconclled below:

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Profit/{loss) multiplied by the average standard rate of corporation

tax in the UK for the year of 19% (2021: 19%)

Effects of:

{Income)/expenses that are not allowable for tax purpases
Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Tax rate changa

Total tax charge for the year

Factors that may affect future tax charge

2022 2021
£7000 £'000
3,544 {478)

673 (91)
(243] 37
{383) 1,998

- {211)
47 1,733

The UK finance act of 2021, which was substantively enacted in 2021, already indicates that the rates will be
increased from 19% to 25%. The Chancellor announced on 15 March 2023 in his 2023 budget that there
would be future changes to the amount of corporation tax in the UK, starting from the beginning of April
2023, the rate of corporation tax will be increasing from 19% to 25%. At balance sheet date, deferred tax

halances are measured at 25% (2021: 25%).
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13.  Intangible assets
Goodwill Software Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2022 237,312 1,712 239,024
Additions - 481 481
Disposals - {1,383) {1,383)
At 31 December 2022 237,312 810 238,122
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 Januvary 2022 237,312 1,518 238,830
Amaortisation charged in the year - 30 30
Disposals - {1,383) {1,383)
At 31 December 2022 237,312 165 237,477
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2022 - 645 645
At 31 December 2021 i - 194 194
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14, Tangible assets

Assets undar Fixtures,
Long leasehold freehold the caurse of fittings &
land & building tand & construction computer Plant 8 Motor
imptr t buliding £000 qulg; it hinery vehicl Total
£'000 £'900 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January
2022 2,227 1,460 918 4371 18,715 165 27,856
Additlons 347 114 1,323 605 1,047 56 3,492
Dispasals - - {265) {484) (3,245) {51) {4,045)
Transfer
between
classes - - {111) 48 63 - -
At 31 December
2022 2,574 1,574 1,865 4,540 16,580 170 27,303
Depreclation
At 1 January
2022 1,907 7i8 - 3,473 14,139 153 20,3%)
Charge for the
year 86 28 - 72 1,100 17 1,5G3
Disposals - - - {313} (2,747) {51) (3,111)
At 31 December
2022 1,993 746 - 3,432 12,492 119 18,782
Carrying
amount
At 31 December
2022 581 828 1,865 1,108 4,088 51 8,521
At 31 December
2021 320 742 o918 898 4,576 12 7,466

The net book value of motor vehicles includes £50k (2021: £8k) in respect of assets held under hire purchase

cantracts,

included in freeshold {and and buildings is land at a value of £438k (2021: £438k} which is not being

depreciated. Assets under the course of construction are also not being depreciated.

15.  Stocks
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Finished goods and gaods for resale 11,305 8,584
Work in progress 2,580 1,281
Raw materials 7,941 8,842
21,826 18,707

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of work in progress and finished goods and

goods for resale and their carrying amounts.
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16,

17.

Debtors: amounts due within one year

2022 2021
£000 £'000
Restated

{see note 1)

Trade debtors 33,572 34,212
Amounts due from parent company 1 1
Amounts due from other group companies:
- Interest bearing 75,959 69,910
- Non-interest bearing 13,813 20,089
Corpaoration tax recelvable 293 781
Deferred taxation (note 19) 1,542 2,709
Other debtors 2,510 -
Prepayments and accrued incame 8,502 4,479
Amounts recoverable on contracts 1,360 . 2,848
137,552 135,029

Interest on foans to ather group companies is accrued at 1.15% (2021: 0.92%]) for EUR, 2.31% (2G21: 1.35%}
for GBP and 2.62% (2021: 1.45%) for USD in accordance with the terms agreed with Group & European
treasury. Amounts due from the parent company and ather group companies are unsecured and repayable
on demand.

Creditors: amounts falling due within ane year

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Obligations under finance leases (note 23} 9 12

Payments received on account 262 -

Trade creditors 11,251 9,412
Amounts due to other group companies

- Interest bearing 1,304 75,195

- Non-interest bearing 28,363 26,027

Carporation tax payable 371 900

Other taxation and social security 2,871 2,438

Other creditors 794 948

Accruals and deferred income 12,266 11,573

57,491 126,555

In the previous year, there were loans from Xylem Europe GmbH, a fellow group company, of £30m and £14m
of which interest was charged on both loans at a variahle rate of 1% SONIA, with maturity scheduled for 31
March 2022, in addition, there was.a loan from Xylem Europe GmbH of £30m of which interest was charged
at a variable rate of 0.6% SONIA with maturity also scheduted for 31 March 2022. During 2022, the maturity
date of all these loans was extended to 31 March 2027, therefore these ioans are now reclassified within

Creditors: amounts falling due within ane year.

Other amounts owed to other group companies are non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on
demand.
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18.  Craditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Amaunts due to other group compatiies
Obligations under finance leases {note 23}
Accruals and deferred income

Interest is charged on loan 1 which has a balance cutstanding of £15m (2021:

{2021: 5.97%). Both loans are repayable to Xylem Europe GmbH in 2031.

2022 2021
£000 €000
119,045 45,045
42 -

56 58
119,143 45,103

£15m]) at a fixed rate of 6.15%
(2021: 6,15%) and on loan 2 which has a balance outstanding of £30m (2021: £30in) at a fixed rate of 5.97%

There are loans from Xylem Europe GmbH of £30m and £14m of which interest is charged on both at a
variable rate of 1% SONIA (2021: 1% SONIA) with maturity scheduled for 31 March 2027. There is an
additional loan from Xylem Eurape GmbH of £30m of which interest is charged at a variable rate of 0.6%
SONIA {2021: 0.6% SONIA) with maturity also scheduled for 31 March 2027 at the balance sheet date. These
loans were previously classified within Creditors: amounts falling due within one year since the maturity date

was originally 31 March 2022.

19, Deferred tax asset

Retirement benefit obligation
Accelerated capital allowances
Losses carried forward

Other timing differences

Amounts above are disclosed within:

Debtors: amounts due within one year

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Restated

{see nate 1)

726 1,763
184 278
5632 666

- 2
1,542 2,709
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Restated

(see note 1)

1,542 2,709
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19,

20,

Deferred tax asset (continued)

The movement on the deferred tax asset is as follows:

2022 2021

£'000 £000
At 1 January 2,708 4,393
Profit and loss account movement arising during the year (130) {509)
Profit and loss account movement arising due to tax rate change - 211
Movement arising from pension scheme deficit {1,037) (2,381)
Movement arising from tax rate change on pension scheme deficit - 995
As at 31 December ) 1,542 2,705

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that the asset is forecast to be utilised within the foreseeable
future. The Group anticipates deferred tax of £346k will be reversed during 2023.

Retirement benefit schemes
a) Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution pensian scheme was introduced to the Group in 2007 following the closure of Xylem
UK Pension Plan {(XUPP) to new entrants and to existing employees in 2012 foliowing the closure of Xylem UK
Pension Plan {XUPP) to accrual. It was extended on 1 July 2014, to replace the Godwin Pumps Limited pension
scheme, a defined benefit scheme which closed. The pension cost charge for the year represents
contributions paid by the Group intc the defined contribution pension scheme and amounted to £2,549k
{2021: £2,351k). A liability of £nil (2021: £nil) existed in respect of pension contributions at 31 December
2022, ’

b) Defined benefit schemes

Defined benefit pension liability

2022 2021

£000 £'000

Xylem UK Pension Plan {XUPP) - 2,605
Godwin Pumps Limited Pension Scheme {2,903) {9,655)
Xylem UK Pensian Plan for UK Expatriates (XPPX) - -
(2,903} {7,050)

Xyfem UK Pension Plan (XUPP)

The Xyiem UK Pension Plan (XUPP) closed to new entrants in November 2007 and all future payments due in
future years are ta recover the deficit of the scheme. The XUPP is a defined benefit scheme in the UK that
shares risks between entities under common control. There is no contractual agreement or stated policy for
charging the net defined benefit cost to individual group entities; therefore, the net defined benefit cost of
the whole defined benefit Plan is recognised in the financial statements of Xylem Water Solutions UK Limited,
which is fegally responsible for the plan. Xylem Water Services Limited recognises a cost equal to its
contributions payable for the period in its individual financial statements.
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20.

Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Xylem UK Pension Plan (XUPP) {continued}

The Plan is a defined benefit plan providing benefits that are linked to salary at the date of the Plan closure
or an earlier date of leaving service. The Plan is now closed to future accrual with benefits for non-pensioners
increasing broadly in line with inflation in the period to retirement. The Pianis governed by Trustee Directors,
whao are responsible for ensuring that there are sufficient funds to meet current and future obligations. The
Plan’s assets are held in a separate fund from the Group's assets. The contributions payable into the Plan are
determined by the Trustee Directors and the plan’s sponsoring Company, Xylem Water Solutions UK Limited,
after obtaining the advice of the Scheme Actuary at each formal triennial actuarial valuation.

The Xylem UK Pension Plan (XUPP) entered into a buy-in arrangement with an insurance company during
2020. With effect from 27 January 2020, when the risk was formally transferred, the bulk of the Plan’s assets
were used to purchase annuities in the name of the Trustee to cover most of the Plan’s liabilities. The value
aof the final premium paid to the insurer (prior to data true-up} was £256.1m.

As at 30 September 2022 the Plan was fuily bought out. All benefits were secured with Rothesay and were
removed from the Group's balance sheet. At 30 September 2022 there was a residual amount of £282k in the
Trustee Bank Account, which was expected to be used to meet future expenses. This has been treated as a
settlement loss within the profit and loss account.  During the year, the Group made gross contributions of
£800k (2021: £6,886k) to the scheme whilst receiving credits from another group company of £280k {2021:
£2,410k). The scheme was fully wound up on 14 November 2023,

Plan assets are stated at thelr fair values at the respective balance sheet dates, and include monies held in
the Trustee bank account and the value of insurance policies held in the name of the Plan Trustee measured
using the FRS102 assumptions at the respective year-ends.

The contributions made by Xylem Europe GmbH, a fellow group company, amounted £280k (2021: £2,410k)
and have been recorded in the profit and loss account within other operating income (note 5}. Total
contributions paid to the scheme by the Group amounted £800k (2021: £6,886k). A liability of £nil {2021:
£nil} existed in respect of pension contributions at 31 December 2022. The tota! contributions to be paid te
the scheme by the Group for 2023 are expected to be £nil.

An actuaria! review of the scheme valuation for FRS 102 was carried out by a qualified independent actuary
as at 31 December 2022. The major assumptions used by the actuary were:

2022 2021

% %

Discount rate n/a 1.85

RPI inflation n/a 3.55

CPl inflation n/a 3.05

Pension increases:

- RPI price inflation, capped at 2.5% n/a 2.20

- CPI price inflation, capped at 3% nfa 2.40

- CPl price inflation, capped at 5% n/a 3.00
The average life expectancy for a pensioner retiring at 65 on the reporting date is:

2022 2021

Years Years

Maie n/a 23.0

Female nfa 25.0
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20.  Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Xylem HK Pensinn Plan {XUPP) [continned)

The average life expectancy for an emplayee retiring at 65 that is aged 45 at the reparting date is:

2022

Years

Male nfa
Female n/a

Sensitivities of the scheme assets

2021
Years

24.7
26.9

No sensitivities have been shown. Due to the scheme buy out, there are no assets or liabilities remaining at

the year-end date no sensitivities are required.

Assets and liabilities of the scheme

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's obligations in respect of defined benefit

scheme are as follows:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Scheme assets at fair value:

Cash - 2,605

insured pensions - 227,470

Fair value of scheme assets 230,075
Present value of defined benefit obligation - (227,470)

- 2,605

Net pension asset
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20. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
b) Defined benefit schemes {continued)
Xylem UK Pension Plan {XUPP) {continued)

Amounts recagnised in profit and loss account

The amounts recognised in the profit and loss account for the year are analysed as follows:

Loss on settlements
Administration expenses

Recognised in arriving at operating profit
Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme liabilities
Interest cost adjustment

Net finance costs {note 11)

Total expense recognlsed in profit and loss account

Amounts transferred to statement of other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on scheme assets
Actuarial gain on scheme liabilities
Interest cost adjustment

Net (loss)/gain recognised

2022 2021
£000 £000
(282) -
(1,633) {1,900)
(1,915) {1,900)
3,116 3,122
(3,086) {3,152)
(36) -
(6} (30)
{1,921) (1,930)
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
{78,976) {11,228)
77,456 14,077
36 -
(1,484) 2,859
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20. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
b} Defined benefit schemes (continued}
Xylem UK Pension Plan (XUPP} (continued)

Rrranclliatinn nf the fair value of the scheme assets

Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January

Interest income

Actuarial loss

Employer contributions

Contributions paid by other group companies {note 5}
Administration expenses

Benefits paid

Remeasurement at 30 September 2022

Other

Falr value of scheme assets at 31 December

Reconciliation of the present value of the scheme liabilities

Present value of scheme liabilities at 1 January
Interest cost

Past service cost

Actuarial gain

Benefits paid

Remeasurement at 30 Septernber 2022

Present value of scheme liabilities at 31 December

Godwin Pumps Limited Pension Scheme

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
230,075 242,111
3,116 3,122
(78,976) (11,218)
520 4,476
280 2,410
(1,633) {1,900}
(9,165) {8,147)
{144,217) -
. (779)
- 230,075
2022 2021
£/000 £'000
227,470 246,542
3,086 3,152
(77,456) (14,677)
{9,165) (8,147)
(143,935) -
- 227,470

The Group participates In the Godwin Pumps Limited Penston Scheme, a fully funded defined benefit pension
scheme. On 30 June 2014, the scheme was closed to new entrants and future accruals, with all participants
transferred to the defined contribution scheme. Total contributions paid to the Scheme amounted £1,430k
{2021: £1,460k). The total contributions to be paid to the scheme by the Group for 2023 are expected to he
£1,430k. A liability of £nil (2021: £nil) existed in respect of pension contributions at 31 December 2022.

The pension payable to an individual is based on their average earnings caicufatad over the period of

pensionable service.

A full actuarial valuation of the Goodwin Pumps Limited Pension Scheme was undertaken at 1 May 2020.
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20.  Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
b} Defined benefit schemes {continued)

Godwin Pumps Limited Pension Scheme {continued)

An actuarial review of the scheme valuation for FRS 102 was carried out by a qualified independent actuary

as at 31 December 2022. The major assumptions used by the actuary were:

2022
Discount rate A4.75%
inflation assumption (RPI} 3.20%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.75%
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 2.75%
Salary increase 2,75%
Employees are entitled to retirement benefits upon reaching the retirement age of 65.
The average life expectancy for a pensioner retiring at 65 on the reporting date is:

2022

Years
Male 219
Female 24.7

The average life expectancy for an employee retiring at 65 that is aged 45 at the reporting date is:

2022

Years

Male 23.2

Female 26.1
Sensitivities of the scheme liabilities

Change

in DBO

2022

£000

Change of -0,10% in discount rate 295

Change of +0.10% in inflatlon rate 373

Change of 1.50% in fong term mortality rate 146

2021

2.00%
3.50%
3.10%
3.10%
3.10%

202%
Years

21.9
245

2021
Years

23.2
26.0

Change
in DBO
2021
£'000

670

625
380
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20.  Retirement benefit schames (continued)
b} Defined benefit schemes (continued)
Godwin Pumps Limited Pension Scheme (continued}

Assets and liabilities of the scheme

The amounts included i the balance sheet arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of defined benefit

scheme are as follows:

2022 2021
£'000 £000

Scheme assets at falr value:
Equities 4,520 8,112
Diversified growth fund 9,062 12,816
Cash and other ’ 5,468 3,896
Fair value of scheme assets 19,050 24,824
Present value of defined benefit obligation {21,953) {34,479)
Net pension liability {2,903) {9,655}
Amounts recognised in profit and loss account
The amounts recognised in the profit and loss account far the year are analysed as follaws:

2022 2021

£°000 £'000

Administration expenses {184} {246)
Recognised in arriving at operating profit (184) {246}
Expected return on pension scheme assets 498 313
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (680) {462}
Net finance costs {note 11) (182) (149}
Total expense recognised In profit and loss account (366) '(395)
Amounts transferred to statement of other comprehensive income

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Actuarial {lass}/gain on scheme assets {6,493} 3590
Actuarial gain on scheme liabilities 12,181 1,033
Net gain 5,688 1,423
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20,

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
h}) Defined benefit schemes {continued)
Godwin Pumps Limited Pension Scheme {continued)

Reconciliation of the fair value of the scheme assets

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 24,824 23,944
Expected returh on scheme assets 438 313
Actuarial (ioss)/gain (6,493) 390
Group cantributions 1,430 1,460
Benefits paid (1,025) {1,037)
Administration expenses {184} (246}
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December 19,050 24,824
Reconciliation of the present valua of the scheme liabilities

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Present value of scheme liabilities at 1 January 34,479 36,087
Interest cost 680 462
Actuarial gain (12,181} {1,033)
Benefits paid {1,025) {1,037)
Present value of scheme liabilities at 31 December 21,953 34,479

Xylem UK Pension Plan for UK Expatriates {XPPX}

The Group participates in the Xylem Pension Plan for UK Expatriates (XPPX). The pension cost charge for the
year represents contributions paid by the Group of £70k (2021: £70k)} into this defined benefit pension
scheme, A liability of £nil {2021; £nil) existed in respect of pension contributions at 31 December 2022, The
contributions to be paid to the scheme by the Group for 2023 are expected to be £70k.

The XPPX is a defined benefit scheme in the UK of which the assets and liabilities are held independently from
the Group. The expected cost of providing pensions, as calculated periodically by a professionally qualified
independent actuary, is charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost over the service life of
the employees in the scheme in such a way that the pension cost Is a substantially level percentage of current
expected future pensionable payrolls.

The Plan provided benefits linked to salary at retirement or earlier date of feaving services. The Plan is now
closed to future accrual with benefits for non-pensioners increasing broadly in line with inflation in the period
to retirement.

Under the rules of the scheme, the contributions payable Into Plan are set by the employer at each triennial
valuation, after consulting with the Trustees and after obtaining the advice of the scheme Actuary. The most
recent triennial funding valuation as at 1 January 2021 found that the Plan was In surplus at that date on the
Group’s funding basis, so no deficit funding contributions were required.
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20,

Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
b} Defined henefit schemes {continued}

Xylem UK Pension Plan for UK Expatriates (XPPX)

An actuarial review of the scheme valuation for FRS 102 was carried out by a qualified independent actuary

as at 31 December 2072 The major assumptions used by the actua y were:

2022
Discount rate 4.85%
Inflation assumption {(RP!) 3.25%
Inflation assumption {CPi) 2.65%
Employees are entitled to retirement benefits upon reaching the retirement age of 65.
The average life expectancy for a pensioner retiring at 65 on the reporting date is:

2022

Years

Male 25.2
Female 27.5

The average life expectancy for an employee retiring at 65 that {s aged 45 at the reporting date Is:

2022

Years

Male 23.6

Female 25.9
Sensitivities of the scheme assets

Change In

DBO

2022

£'000

Change of -0.25% in discount rate 104

Change of +0.25% in inflation rate 13

Change of +1 years in life expectancy 177

2021

1.80%
3.70%
3.05%

2021
Years

25.1
27.5

2021
Years

235
258

Change in
DBO

2021
£000

174

28
329
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20,

Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
Xylem UK Pension Plan for UK Expatriates (XPPX) (continued)

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's obligations in respect of defined henefit
scheme are as folfows:

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Scheme assets at fair value:
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 62 76
Expected return on scheme assets 244 296
Employer cantributions 841 1,098
Actuarlal loss 1,651 2,211
Administration costs 2,871 3,674
Benefits paid 70 221
Fair value of scheme assets 5,739 7,576
Present value of defined benefit obligation {5,279) {7,290)
Surplus in the scheme 460 286
Restriction on pension asset (460} (286}

Net pension asset - -

The pansion asset has been restricted following the closure of the scheme as the asset cannot be recovered
through a reduction in future contributions.

Amounts recognised in profit and loss account

The amounts recognised in the profit and loss account for the year are analysed as foflows:

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Administration expenses (543 (35}
Recognised in arriving at operating profit {54) {35}
Expectad return on pension scheme assets 132 87
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (127} (84}
Interast cost adjustment (5) (3)
Net finance costs {note 11) - -
Total expense recognised in profit and loss account (54) (35)
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20.

Retirement benefit scheme (continued)
bj Defined benefit schemes {(continued)
Xylem UK Pension Plan for UK Expatriates {(XPPX} {continued)

Amounts transferred to statement of other comprehensive income

Actuarfal loss on scheme assets
Actuarial gain on scheme liabilities
Restriction on pension asset excluding interest cost adjustment

Net {oss

Reconciliatian_ of the fair value of the scheme assets

Fair value of scheme assets at 1 anuary
Expected return on scheme assets '
Emplayer contributions

Actuariaf [oss

Administration costs

Benefits paid

Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December

Reconcillation of the present value of the scheme liabilities

Present value of scheme liabilities at 1 January
[nterest cost

Actuarial gain

Benefits paid

Prasent value of scheme liabilities at 31 December

2022 2021
£'000 £000
{1,474) {233)
1,627 230
(169} (32)
(15} (35}
2022 2021
£'000 £000
7,576 8,174
132 87
70 70
(1,474) (233)
(54) {35)
(511) (487)
5,739 7,576
2022 2021
£7000 £'000
7,290 7,923
127 84
(1,627 {230)
{511) {487)
5,279 7,290
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21.  Share capital and reserves

Called up share capital

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Allotted, called-up and fully paid
2,101 ordinary shares of £1 each 2 2

The Company's ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income, each carry the right te one vote at
general meetings of the Company.

Share premium account

£000

At 1 January 2022 and at 31 Oecember 2022 271,999

The share premium account represents the consideration received for shares Issued above their nominal
value net of transaction costs.

Profit and loss account
The cumulative profit and loss, net of distributions to the owners of the Group.

22.  Cash flow statement

Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated by operations

2022 2021
£000 £000
Operating profit 6,282 2,985
Adjustment for:
Amortisation (note 13) 30 4,847
Depreciation (note 14} 1,503 1,660
Profit an sale of tangible assets {29} {1,185}
Operating cash inflow before movement in working capital 7,716 8,307
Inventories (note 15) (3,119) {2,732)
Trade and other receivables (2,014) (795)
Trade and other payahles 1,986 4,173
Pension contributions in excess of operating costs (147) (5,456)
Provisions and other financial liabilities : - {1,813}
Net cash inflows from operating activities 4,422 1,084
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22.

23.

Cash flow statement {continued)

Net debt reconclliation

At1l Other At 31
January Cash non- cash December
2022 flows changes 2022
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,613 329 - 3,942
3,613 329 - 3,942
Net debt due within one year ;
Obligations under finance leases {note 17) (12} iz {9) (9)
Amounts due to parent and other group
Companies (note 17) {74,000) - 74,000 -
Net debt due after more than one year
Obligations under finance leases {note 18) - - (42} {42)
Amounts due to parent and other group
Companies {note 18) (45,045) - (74,000) {119,045}
Net debt {115,444) 341 (51) (115,154)

Other non-cash changes include the reclassification of loans from Xylem Europe GmbH, a fellow group
company, Loans of £30m and £14m of which interest was charged on both loans at a variable rate of 1%
SON!A, with maturity scheduled for 31 March 2022, in addition, there was a loan of £30m of which interest
was charged at a variable rate of 0.6% SONIA with maturity also scheduled for 31 March 2022. During 2022,
the maturity date of all these loans was extended to 31 March 2027, therefore these loans are now
reclassified within Creditors: amounts falling due within one year.

Financlal commitments

The group participates in a treasury arrangement, which catls for unlimited bank cross-guarantees between
certain group companies. The net amount due to the bank at year-end was £nil (2021: £nil).

The Group had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as set out below:

Land &
buildings Other
2022 2021 2022 2021
Operating leases which expire: £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Within one year 1,191 640 1,958 1,372
Between two and five years 3,619 1,484 2,751 1,565
After five years 500 163 - -
5,310 2,287 4,709 2,937
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23.

24,

Firancial commitments {continued}

The Group had abligations under finance leases as set out below:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Net abligation payable:
Within one year (note 17) 9 12
Between two and five years (note 18) 42 -
51 12

Post balance sheet events

The Xylem UK Pension Plan {(XUPP) was fully bought out an 30 September 2022 when all benefits were secured
with Rothesay Life Pic and were removed from the Group’s balance sheet at that date. The scheme was not
fully wound up until 14 November 2023,

Beliingham & Stanley Limited

On 31 January 2023, Xylem announced its intention to move the production of Bellingham & Stanley Limited’s
lahoratory refractometry and polarimetry products to its Weilheim, German facility. Order entry and
distribution for customers outside the UK has now fully transitioned to Weillheim, while UK customers continue
to be served within the UK but under Xylem Water Solutions UK Limited.

On 28 Octoher 2023, Bellingham & Stanley Limited sold some of its business and assets to Xylem Analytics
Germany GmbH for £473k in exchange for cash, On the same day, Bellingham & Stanley Limited transferred
its sales and service operations to Xylem Water Solutions UK Limited in exchange for cash of £7,755k.

On 14 November 2023, Bellingham and Stanley Limited distributed all its remzining assets following a capital
reduction to £1 via an interim dividend paid of £7,727k and final dividend payable of £7,755k). The final
dividend is still outstanding.

Water Process Limited

On 31 October 2023, Water Process Limited distributed its remaining assets via a dividend of £27,242k after a
capital reduction to £1 which took place on 27 October 2023,

Godwin Holdings Limited

On 2 Qctober 2023, Godwin Hoidings Limited transferred its entire ownership In the ordinary share capital of
Xylem Dewatering Solutions UK Limited to Xylem Water Holdings Limited.

Arrow Rentals Limited

On 1 November 2023, Arrow Rentals Limited sold its 26% ownership in Xylern Water Solutions Ireland Limited
to Xylem Swiss 1 (a fellow group company) for €830k in exchange for a loan note. On the same day, Arrow
Rentals Limited distributed all its assets via a dividend of €830k to B S Pumps Ltd. Thereafter, BS Pumps Limited
sold its interests in Arrow Rentals Limited to Xylem Water Solutions Ireland Limited (a fellow group company)
far €69k in exchange for a loan note. Xylem Water Solutions Ireland Limited then absorbed Arrow Rentals
Limited under the Irish domestic merger regime.

BS Pumps Limited

On 1 November 2023, BS Pumps Limited distributed ali its assets via a dividend of €899k to Xylem Water
Solutions UK Limited.
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24,

25.

Post balance sheet events (continued)

Xylem Water Holdings Limited

On 26 September 2023, Sensus Metering Systems {LuxCo 3) 5.A.r.]. (2 fellow group company) transferred the
shares of Sensus (UK Holdings) Limited (a fellow group company) to Xylem Water Holdings Limited for a
consideration of £105,557k in exchange for cash.

Financial Instruments

The carrying values of the Group financial assets and liabilities are summarised by category below:

2022 2021

Financial assets measured at amortised cost £'000 £'000

Cash 3,942 3,613

Trade debtors {note 16} 33,572 34,212

Amounts due from parent company [note 16} 1 1

Amounts due from other group companies:

- [nterest bearing (note 16) 75,359 69,910

- Non-interest bearing (note 16} _ 13,813 20,089

Other dehtors 2,510 -

129,797 127,825

2022 2021

Financlal llabllitles measured at amortised cost £'000 £'000

Obligations under finance leases (note 17) 9 12

Trade creditors {note 17) 11,251 9,412
Amounts due to other group companies: :

- Interest bearing (note 17) 1,304 75,195

- Non-interest bearing (note 17) 28,363 26,027

Other creditors 794 943

Amounts to other group companies (note 18) 119,045 45,045

Obligations under finance leases (note 18) 42 -

160,808 156,639

The Group’s income, expense, gains and losses in respect of financial instruments are summarised below:

2022 2021
Interest income/{expense) £'000 £'000
Total interest income for financial assets at amortised cost (note 9} . 4
Total interest expense for financial liabllities at amortised cost (note 10) (3,481) (3,828)
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26.

27.

28,

Share-based payments

The UK Group has no liabilities or provisions relating to share-based payments since they are issued upon
exearcise by Xylem inc.

Stock Option Grants

The options are awarded with a contractual term of ten years and generally vest over a three-year period and
are exercisable within the contractual term, except in certain instances of death, retirement or disability. The
exercise price per share Is the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date each option is
granted.

Restricted Stock Unit Grants

Restricted shares granted to employees in 2022 vest over a three-year period. Restricted shares granted to
employees prior to 2022 generally become fully vested upon the third anniversary of the date of grant, Prior
to the time a restricted share becomes fully vested, the awardees cannot transfer, pledge, hypothecate or
encumber such shares. Prior to the time a restricted share is fully vested, the awardees do not have certain
rights of a stackholder, such as the right to vote and receive dividends; however, dividends accrue during the
vesting period and are paid upon vesting. If an employee leaves prior to vesting, whether through resignation
or termination, the restricted stock unit and related accrued dividends are forfeited. If an employee retlres,
a pro rata portion of the restricted stock unit may vest in accordance with the terms of the grant agreements.

Performance Share Units

Performance share units granted under the long-term incentive plan vest based upon perfarmance by the
Group over a three-year period against targets approved by the compensation committee. For the
performance periods, the performance share units were granted at a target of 100% with actual pay out
contingent upon the achievement of a pre-set, three-year adjusted Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) and
cumuiative adjusted net income performance target for ROIC performance share units and a relative total
shareholder return (TSR) performance for TSR performance share units.

Related party transactions

In accordance with the exemption in FRS 102 section 33, related party transactions with other group
companies which are owned 100% by Xylem Water Holdings Limited have not been disclosed.

Other related party transactions

There are no key management personnel other than the directars.

Uitimate controlling party

As of 31 December 2022, Xylem Luxembourg 1 S.a.r.l. is the immediate parent company and is registered in
Luxembourg. The previous immediate parent company, Xylem industries S.a.r.l., transferred beneficial
ownership of this Company ta Xylem Luxembourg 1 5$.4.r.]. in November 2022,

The ultimate holding company and controlling party is Xylem Inc., a company Tncorporated in the United
States of America.

The largest and smallest group in which these financial statements are consolidated is that of the ultimate
holding company, Xylem Inc. The financial statements of that company are available from its registered office
at 301 Water Street SE, Washington, DC 20003, USA.
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Fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Debtors
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current {iabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Czlled up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ deficit

Nates

w wuw

2022 2021
£000 £000
53,779 53,779
3,790 3,514
(20,822) (48,711)
{17,032} {45,197)
36,747 8,582
(75,045) (45,045)
(38,298) (36,463)
2 2
271,999 271,999
{310,299} (308,464)
{38,208) {36,463}

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 the Company reported a loss of £1,835k {2021: loss of £2,498k).

Notes 1 to 11 on pages 61 to 68 form an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 December 2023 and are signed on its

behalf by:

L) Bentley
Director

Repistered number: 07618426
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Balance at 1 January 2021
Loss for the financial year

Balance at 31 December 2021

Balance at 1 January 2022
Lass for the financial year

Balance at 31 December 2022

Called up Share Profit and
share premium lass
capital account account Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
2 271,999 {305,966) (33,965)
- - (2,498) (2,498)
2 271,999 {308,464) (36,463)
Called up Share Profit and
share premium loss
capital accaunt account Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2 271,999 {308,464} {36,463)
- - (1,835) (1,835)
2 271,999 {210,299} {38,298)

Notes 1 to 11 on pages 61 to 68 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

Significant aceounting policies

Company information

Xylem Water Holdings Limited (“the Company®) is a private company limited by shares domiciled and
incorparated in England and Wales. The registered office is at Private Road No 1, Colwick Industrial Estate,
Nottingham, United Kingdom, NG4 2AN. The Campany's principal activity Is to act as a holding company for
a group of companies which are involved in the water industry.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 162”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements are presented In sterling which is the functional currency of the Company. Monetary
amounts In thase financial statements are rounded tc the nearest whole £1,000 except where otherwise
indicated,

Consolidated financial statements

These tonsolidated financial statements alsa include this entity. The financial statements of the Company
are also included in the financial statements of Xylem Inc. The consolidated financlal statements of Xylem Inc.
are available fram its repistered office at 301 Water Street SE, Washington, DC 20003, USA.

Reduced disclosures
In accardance with RS 102, the Company has taken advantage of the exemptions from the following
disclosure requirements:

+  Section 4 ‘Statement of Financial Position’ — Reconciliation of the opening and closing number of shares

+  Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ — Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flow and related notes and
disclosures

*  Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instruments’ — Disclosure exemptions relating to financial instruments

*  Saction 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ — Compensation for key management persannel.

Going toncern

The directors are aware that there wilf always be an element of economic uncertainty around making a golng
concern assessment of the Company. However, on 16 February 2023, the directors recelved a letter of
support from Xylem Inc,, the ultimate parent company that it will continue to provide financial support in
arder for the Company to meet its financial obligations for a minimum of twelve months from the date these
financial statements are approved. The directors are satisfied that the letter of support is sufficient to
determine that the loan and accrued interest the Company owes to Xylem Europe GmbH. will not be recalled
in the next 12 months from the date of signing the accounts. As aresult, the directors consider it appropriate
to continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

Borrowing costs

The costs of borrowing on interest bearing loans are recognised in the profit and loss account on an accruals
hasis. Interest is calculated using the effective interest rates determined by the prevailing market interest
rates.

The Company has applied the following amendments to FRS 102 issued by the FRC for the first time during
the prior year. The amendments issued by the FRC in December 2020. The amendments enable the entity to
reflect the effects of transitfaning from LIBOR to SONIA without giving rise to accounting impacts that would
not pravide useful Information to users of financial statements. The Company is exposed to SONIA in Its
intercompany loan balances.
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Significant accounting policies

Investments

Interests in subsidiaries are initiaily measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The investiments are assessed for impairment at each reporting date and any impairment
losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

imipairment of investments

At each reperting end date, the company reviews the carrying smounts of its investments to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. if any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss {if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amaunt is the higher of fair value less costs to dispose and value in use. In assessing valug in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recaverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit} is estimated to he less thanh the carrying
amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Financial assets
The Company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12
‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial Instruments,

Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are initially
measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amartised cost
using the effective interest method, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
transactian is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a2 market rate of interest.

Other financial assets

Financial assets classified as other financlal assets are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
re-measurement recognised in the profit and loss account. The net gain or loss recognised in the profit and
loss account includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through the profit and loss account, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each reparting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
oceurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected. The impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity.
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1. Slgnificant accounting policies

Financlal Habifities
Financial liabilitles are classified as either basic or other financial liabilities.

Basic financlal liabilities

Basic financial liabilities are initially measured at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest. They are subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recagnised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the finandiai liability to the net
carrying amount on initlal recognition. '

Other financial liabilities

Financtal llabilities classified as other financial liabilities are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arlsing
on re-measurement recognised in the profit and loss account.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

Financia! liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense. Current tax assets are recognised when tax

pald exceeds the tax payable.

Current tax is charged or credited in profit or lass, except when it retates to items charged or credited to other
camprehensive income or equity, when the tax follows the transaction or event it relates to and Is also
charged or credited to other comprehensive income, or equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, if and only If, there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultanecusly.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from total comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods. Current tax
assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date,

Fareign exchange
Transactions in currencies ather than the functional currency {fareign currency} are initially recorded at the

exchange rate prevalling on the date of the transaction.

Manetary assets and liabilities denaminated in fareign currencias are transtated at the rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencles are transfated
at the rate ruling at the date or the transactian, or, if the asset or liability is measured at fair value, the rate
when that fair value was determined.

All translation differences are taken to profit or loss, except to the extent that they relate to gains or losses
on non-monetary items recognised in other comprehensive income, when the related translation gain or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income,
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2, Critical accounting estimates and Judgements

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

There are not considered to be any critical accounting estimates or judgements.

3. Loss for the year
As permitted by s408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate profit and loss account is presented in respect
of the parent company. The loss attributable to the Company is disclosed in the footnote of the company’s
balance sheet.

4, Employees and directors’ remuneration
There were no employees of the Company in the year (2021: nil}.
During the year and preceding year, the directors’ received remuneration from Xylem Water Services Limited,

a fellow group company within the UK. No remuneration has been charged to the profit and loss account in
respect of their services to the Company in either years being reported, since it (s not practical to ailocate.

5. tnvestments In subsidiaries

£000
Cost
At 1 January 2022 and at 31 December 2022 312,327
Provision for Impairment
At 1 January 2022 and at 31 December 2022 258,548
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 53,779
At 31 December 2021 53,779
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5. Investments in subsidiaries {continued)
a) Directly owned by the Company:

Proportion
of nominal
value held
directiy

Class of
Share-
holaing

Noture of

Name of company business

Country of
incorporation

Reglistered office

100% Holding

company

Xylem Water Solutions  Ordinary

UK Holdings Ltd*

Pension Trustee COrdinary 100% Dormant

Management Ltd**

Bellingham & Stanley  Ordinary Fluid Tech

: 160%
Ltd* :

100% Dormant

Lowara UK Ltd** Ordinary

Godwin Holdings Ltd**  Ordinary 100% Dormant

Head
Office

Xylem Water Services Ordinary 100%

Ltd*

Holding
company

Xylem IP UK S.a.r.l. Ordinary ~ 50%

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

Luxembourg

Private Road %
Colwick
Nottingham
Nottinghamshire
NG4 ZAN

Private Road 1
Colwick
Nottingham
Nottinghamshire
NG4 2AN

Private Road 1
Colwick
Nottingham
Nottinghamshire
NG4 2AN

Private Road 1
Colwick
Nottingham
Nottinghamshire
NG4 ZAN

Quenington
Fairford
Cirencester
Glaucestershire
GL7 58X

Private Road 1
Colwick
Nottingham
Nottinghamshire
NG4 2AN

11 Breedewues
L-1259
Senningerberg
Luxembourg

* Exempt from audit by virtue of s479A of Companias Act 2006 as Xylern Water Holdings Limited provided the required guarantee.

e Exempt from preparing accounts for a dormant subsidiary by virtue of s394A-C and exempt from flling accounts for a dormant

subsidlary by virtue of s448A-C.
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5. Investments In subsldiaries {continued}
b) Indirectly owned by the Company:

Proportion
Class of of nominal
Share- value held
Name of Company holding directly

Nature of
business

Country of
incorporation

Registered office

Xylem Water Solutions UK  Ordinary 100%
Ltd*

Water Process Ltd* Ordinary  100%

Xylem Water Solutions Ordinary 100%
Rugby Ltd*

Xylem Dewatering Ordinary  100%
Solutions UK Ltd*

8S Pumps Ltd** Ordinary  100%

Arrow Rentals Ltd Ordinary 100%

Xylem Water Soiutions Ordinary  26%
ireland Ltd***

Fluid Tech

Fluid Tech

Fluid Tech

Fluid Tech

Dormant

Dormant

Fluid Tech

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

Narthern lreland

Ireland

Ireland

Private Road 1
Colwick
Nottingham
Nottinghamshire
NG4 2AN

Private Road 1
Colwick
Nottingham
Nottinghamshire
NG4 2AN

Private Road 1
Colwick
Nottingham
Nottinghamshire
NG4 2AN

Quenington
Fairford
Cirencester
Gloucestershire
GL7 5BX

Hydepark
Commercial Centre
Newtownabbey
County Antrim
BT36 4PY

50 Broomhill Close
Airton Road
Tallaght

Dublin 24

50 Broomhill Close
Airton Road
Tallaght

Dublin 24

d Exempt from audit by virtue of 5479A of Compantes Act 2006 as Xylern Water Holdings Limited provided the required guarantee.

**  Exempt from preparing accounts for a dormant subsidiary by virtue of s394A-C and exempt from filing accounts for a darmant

subsidiary by virtue of s448A-C.

**+ Thevalue of the Investment |s valued at Enil since it has been fully impaired.

66



XYLEM WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

6.

Debtors: amounts due within one year

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Amaunts awed by parent company 1 1
Amaunts owed by subsidiaries 3,789 3,513
3,790 3,514

In the current year group relief has been allocated to the relevant group company, and now included in
Amounts owed by direct subsidiaries. Amounts due from the parent company and subsidiaries are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and receivable on demand.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2022 2021

£000 £'000
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 10,031 10,257
Amounts owed to other group companies: )

"~ Non-interast bearing 10,791 8,432
- Interest bearing - 30,000
Other creditors - 22

20,822 48,711

Loan interest charged on any short-term cash pool balances Is calculated at European Central Bank rate plus
0.5%, equating to an average of 2.32% (2021: 1.59%) for GBP. Amounts owed to subsidiaries and other group
companies are unsecured and repayable on demand.

In the prior year there was a further loan from Xylem Europe GmbH of £30m in which interest was charged
at a variable rate of 1% SONIA with maturity scheduled for 31 March 2022, During 2022, the maturity date
was extended ta 31 March 2027, therefore this loan is now reclassified within Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year.

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Amounts owed to other group companies 75,045 45,045

Interest is charged on loan 1 which has a balance outstanding of £15m (2021: £15m) at a fixed rate of 6.15%
{2021: 6.15%) and on loan 2 which has a balance outstanding of £30m (2021: £30m) at a fixed rate of 5.97%
(2021: 5.97%). Both loans are repayable to Xylem Europe GmbH in 2031,

There is a further loan from Xylem Europe GmbH of £30m in which interest Is charged at a variable rate of 1%
SONIA with maturity scheduled for 31 March 2027 at the balance sheet date. This loan was previously
classified within Creditars: amounts faliing due within one year since the maturity date was extended during
2022 from 31 March 2022,
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10.

11.

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

2022 2021
£'000 £°000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
2,101 ordinary shares of £1 each 2 2

The Company's ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income, each carry the right to one vaote at
general meetings of the Company.

Share premium account

£'600

At 1 January 2022 and at 31 December 2022 271,999

The share premium account represents the consideration received for shares issued above their nominal
value net of transaction costs. :

Profit and loss account

The cumulative profit and loss, net of distributions to the owners of the Company.
Related party transactions

In accordance with the exemption in FRS 102 section 33, related party transactions with other group
companies which are 100% owned by the Company have not been disclosed.

Ultimate controlling party

As of 31 December 2022, Xylem Luxembourg 1 5.4.r.l. is the immediate parent company and is registered in
Luxembourg. The previous immediate parent company, Xylem Industries S.a.r.l., transferred beneficial
ownership of this Company to Xylem Luxembourg 1 S.3.r.l. on 10 November 2022.

The ultimate holding company and controlling party is Xylem Inc., a company incorporated in the United
States of America.

The smallest group in which these financial statements are consolidated is this Company and its subsidiaries.

The largest group in which these financial statements are consolidated is that of the ultimate holding
company, Xylem Inc, The financial statements of that company are available from its registered affice at 301
Water Street SE, Washington, DC 20003, USA,
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